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Alan K. Steinbrecher (SB#79201)
asteinbrecher @steinbrecherspan.com
GeoffreéT. Stover (SB#211715)
gstover @steinbrecherspan.com
Andrew Huang (SB#304402)
ahuang @steinbrecherspan.com
STEINBRECHER & SPAN LLP
445 S. Figueroa St., Suite 2350
Los Angeles, CA 90071

T: (213% 891-1400

F: (213) 891-1470

Attorneys for Defendant
MEDCURSOR, INC.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

CHAD CASEY, Individually and On
Behalf of All Others Similarly
Situated,
Plaintiff,
Vs.
MEDCURSOR, INC,,

Defendant.

CASE NO.
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TO THE CLERK OF THE ABOVE-ENTITLED COURT:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendant Medcursor, Inc. (“Medcursor’)
hereby removes to this Court the state court action described below.

Jurisdiction

1. This is a civil action of which this Court has original jurisdiction under
28 U.S.C. § 1332, in that it is a civil action between citizens of different states and
the matter in controversy exceeds the sum of $75,000, exclusive of interest and
costs.

Grounds for Removal

2. On February 19, 2021, an action was commenced in the Superior
Court of the State of California in and for the County of Fresno, entitled Chad
Casey, Individually and on Behalf of All Others Similarly Situated v. Medcursor,
Inc., as Case Number 21CEG00507. A copy of the Complaint is attached hereto as
Exhibit “A.”

3. The first date on which Medcursor received a copy of the Complaint
was when Medcursor was served with a copy of the Complaint and a summons
from the said state court by substituted service on March 23, 2021, rendering
service effective on April 2, 2021. A copy of the summons and the proof of service
are attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”

4. Medcursor filed an Answer to the Complaint on April 29, 2021. A
copy of the Answer is attached hereto as Exhibit “C.”

5. This is a civil action which may be removed to this Court by
Medcursor pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1441(b), in that it is a civil action between
citizens of different states and the matter in controversy exceeds the sum of
$75,000, exclusive of interest and costs.

6. Complete diversity of citizenship exists. Plaintiff Chad Casey is a
citizen of the State of California. Defendant Medcursor is and was a corporation

incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada, with its principal place of
2
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business in the State of Nevada. Medcursor is the only defendant that has been
named and served in this action.

7. The matter in controversy exceeds the sum of $75,000, exclusive of
interest and costs. Among other relief, Plaintiff seeks an injunction against
Medcursor that would require Medcursor to initiate a recall of all products sold in
California in the last four years, with an offer to refund the purchase price, plus
reimbursement of interest. (Exhibit A at ] 30, 31, 81.) The cost to Medcursor of

complying with the injunction sought, if granted, would exceed $75,000.

Dated: April 30, 2021 STEINBRECHER & SPAN LLP
GEOFFREY T. STOVER
ANDREW HUANG

By: /s/ Alan K. Steinbrecher
Alan K. Steinbrecher

Attorneys for Defendant Medcursor, Inc.

NOTICE OF REMOVAL
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KAZEROUNI LAW GROUP, APC

Abbas Kazerounian, Esq, (SBN 249203) 5/1':9')'/*2502 ) 4:30 PM
ak@kazlg.com Superior Court of California
245 Fischer Avenue, Unit D1 County of Fresno

Costa Mesa, CA 92626 By: A, Ramos, Deputy
Telephone: (800) 400-6808

Facsimile: (800) 520-5523

BLACK OAK LAW FIRM

Adib Assassi, Esq. (SBN 301036)
adib@blackoaklaw.com

1100 W. Town and Country Rd., Ste 1250
Orange, CA 92868

Telephone: (800) 500-0301

Facsimile: (800) 500-0301
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Plaintiff Chad Casey (“Plaintiff””), on behalf of himself and others similarly

situated, brings this class action suit against Medcursor, Inc. (“Defendant™) for
violations of California’s Song Beverly Consumer Warranty Act (“SBA”), California
Civil Code §8 1790, et seq.; California’s Consumer Legal Remedies Act (“CLRA”),
California Civil Code §§ 1750, et seq.; and California’s Unfair Competition Law
(“UCL”), California Business and Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq.

SUMMARY
Defendant is a manufacturer of products and advertises that its products are sold
with express warranties,
Defendant includes within its product packaging warranty registration:
instructions and also makes its warranty registration form available online.

The SBA explicitly requires a manufacturer who chooses to provide a watranty

or product registration card or form, or an electronic online watranty or product

registration form, to be completed and returned by the consumer, to have the
card or form include statements that:
a. Inform the consumer that the card or form is for product registration; and,
b. Inform the consumer that failure to complete and return the card or form
does not diminish the individual’s warranty rights.
Defendant intentionally omits any such statements that are expressly required by
the SBA.
As a result of Defendant’s unlawful and deceitful business practices, Defendant
is able to chill warranty claims and benefit economically by duping consumers
into thinking they do not have warranty rights unless they fill out the form and
provide their personal information to Defendant. Or even woise, consumers
actually do not have the warranties that were protnised to them when they
purchased their products as they must now register their warranties, a
requirement that was not disclosed at the time of purchase. Consumers are thus
additionally deceived into purchasing products they would not have, had they

-2
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pu—y

known they did not actually come with warranties.

2||6. Rither scenario results in Defendant benefitting at the consumer’s expense.

3 7. Defendant’s unlawful and deceptive practices-alleged herein violate the SBA, the
4 CLRA, and the UCL,

5 PARTIES

6 8. Plaintiff is, and at all times mentioned herein was, an individual residing in the
7 County of Fiesno, State of California.

8 9. Plaintiff is a purchaser of Defendant’s Neck Shoulder Massager with Heat,
9 Electric Shiatsu Back Massage Device (the “Product”).
10 |10. Defendant is a Nevada Coxporétion that does continuous and substantial business

—_
-

throughout the state of California, including Fresno County.

—
N

11. At all relevant times, Defendant was engaged in the business of marketing,

supplying, and selling its products, including the Product purcllaé,ed by Plaintiff,

GROUP APC
= =

to the public through a system of marketers, retailers and distributors,

: % 15112, All acts of employees of Defendant as alleged were authorized or ratified by an

ﬁ: 16 officer, director, or managing agent of the employer.

o JURISDICTION AND VENUE
I8 1113, Subject matter jurisdiction is proper in this Court for the California statutory
19 causes of action.
20 114, This Coutt has personal jutisdiction over Defendant because Defendant
21 conducts business in the Couiity of Fresno, State of California; and, Plaintiff
22 was injured in the County of Frésno, where Plaintiff resides.
231115, Venue is proper
24 FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
25116, On or about December 15, 2020, Plaintiff searched online for a new neck and
26 shoulder massager.
271117, Plaintiff saw Defendant’s Product, the Neck Shoulder Massager with Heat,
28

Electric Shiatsu Back Massage Device, advertised for sale.

~3- ‘
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23,

24.

235,

Tt was represented to Plaintiff that the Product was accompanied by Defendant’s
[2-month express warranty.

Relying on, and valuing, the affirmative watranty promise made regarding the
product, Plaintiff putchased the Product for approximately $56.00 through
Amazon.com.

Upon opening the Product’s packaging, Plaintiff discovered that it did not come
with a warranty as Plaintiff was led to believe.

Contained within the Product’s packaging was a registration card with
instructions requiring Plaintiff to “register” the Product’s warranty online within
30 days of the purchase date in order to receive the warranty benefits that were
promised.

Specifically, Plaintiff was instructed to register for the Product’s warranty at
https://registration.medcursor.com/, which contained, in part, the following
deceptive language teferring to the Product’s warranty as insurance: “In order to
complete your 1 year replacement insurance registration online, please fill up the
form with your détails.””!

The wartanty registration card and online registration form failed to inform
Plaintiff that it was for product registration only, and did not inform Plaintiff that
failure to complete and return the card or 6nline form did not diminish Plaintiff’s
warranty rights as required by California Civil Code § 1793.1. |

Upon information and belief, Defendant uses the personal information it collects
from such cards for its own business and marketing purposes and for its own
economic benefit.

Upon information and belief, Defendant intends for the warranty registration
card and online form to have a chilling effect on warranty claims, preventing

customers who have not registered, or who choose not to register, their

' hitps://registration.medcursor.com/ (last visited Dec. 30, 2020).

4.
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26.

27.

28.

29.

warranties from making warranty claims, thereby saving Defendant money in
warranty repair and administration costs.
Defenidant has no right to access personal customer information through
watranty registration for these purposes, by not making the legally mandated
disclosures to customers.
Had the Product’s exterior packing disclosed that the warranty was contingent on
registration by Plaintiff providing his personal information, Plaintiff would not
have purchased the Product, or alternatively would not have paid a premium for
the Product.
Plaintiff has not received the Product that Plaintiff bargained for.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS
Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of himself and on behalf of all others
similarly situated (the “Class”), pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure
Section 382.

. Plaintiff represents and is a member of the Classes, consisting of!

a. All persons who purchased one or more of Defendant’s
products within California during the four (4) years
immediately preceding the filing of the Complaint through
the date of class certification, which were accompanied by a
watranty or product registration card or form, or an
electronic online warranty or product registration form, fo
be completed and returned by the consumer, which do not
contain statements, each displayed in a «clear and
conspicuous manner, informing the consumer that: i) the
card or form is for product registration, and ii) informing
the consumer that failure to complete and return the card or
form does not diminish his ot her warranty rights.

b, All persons who purchased one or more of Defendant’s
products within California during the three (3) years
immediately preceding the filing of the Complaint through
the date of class certification, which were advertised as
being accompanied with an express warranty but which do

-5-
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31,

32,
33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

not contain a warranty, and/or contain warranty activation,

confirmation or registration cards requiring persons to

provide their personal data or take additional steps in order

to receive a warrahty.
Products that meet the above Class definition are referred to herein as “Class
products.”
Defendant and its employees or agents are excluded from the Classes.
Plaintiff does not presently know the number of members in the Classes but
believes the Class members number in the several thousands, if not
substantially more. Thus, this matter should be certified as a class action to
assist in the expeditious litigation of this matter.
Plaintiff and members of the Classes were hatmed by the acts of Defendant in
violating Plaintiff’s and the putative Class members’ rights.
Plaintiffs reserve the right to expand the class definition to seek recovery on
behalf of additional persons as warranted, as facts are learned through further
investigation and discovery.
The joinder of the Class members is impractical and the disposition of their
claims in the class action will provide substantial benefits both to the parties
and to the court.
The Classes can be identified through Defendant’s records, Defendant’s
agents’ records, and/or records of the retailer from which the products were
purchased.
There is a well-defined community of interest in the questions of law and fact
to the Class that predominate over questions which may affect individual
Class members, including the following:

a. Whether the Class products were sold with warranty or product
registration cards or forms, or electronic online warranty or product

registration forms, which did not contain statements, each displayed in a

~6-
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clear and conspicuous manner, informing the consumer that the card or
form is for product registration, and informing the consumer that failure
to complete and return the card or form does not diminish his or her
warranty rights,

b. Whether the Class products were sold with watranty or product
registration cards or forms, or electronic online warranty or product
registration forms,

¢. Whether the Class products were sold with express warranties;

d. Whether the Class products make warranty rights contingent on
registration;

e. Whether Defendant intends warranty registration to act as a barrier to
warranty claims;

£ Whether Defendant intends to use warranty registration as a means for
obtaining Class members’ personal information;

g How Defendant uses Class members’ personal information;

h. Whether Defendant violated the SBA by making Class products’
warranties contingent on registration;

i, Whether Defendant violated the SBA by not disclosing to Class
members that by not submitting warranty registration cards, or online
forms, their watranty rights would not be diminished;

j. Whether Defendant engaged in false or deceptive advertising practices in
violation of the CLRA by not disclosing the warranty registration
requirement of Class products to Class members prior to their
purchases;

k. Whether Defendant is liable for damages, and the amount of such
damages; and

|. Whether Class members are entitled to equitable relief including
injunctive relief,

-7 -
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39.

40.

41.

42.

43,

44,

45,

46.

Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the Classes since Plaintiff
purchased a Class product, as did each member of the Classes,

Plaintiff and all Class members sustained injutries arising out of Defendant’s
wrongful conduct and deception.

Plaintiff is advancing the same claims and legal theories on behalf of herself
and all absent Class members.

Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the
Classes in that Plaintiff has no interests antagonistic to any member of the
Classes.

Absent a class action, the Classes will continue to face the potential for
irreparable harm, In addition, these violations of law will be allowed to proceed
without remedy and Defendant will likely continue such illegal conduct.
Plaintiff has retained counsel experienced in handling class action claims and
individual claims involving breach of warranties and unlawful business
practices.

A class action is a superior method for the fair and efficient adjudication of this
controversy. The injury suffered by each individual Class member is relatively
small in comparison to the burden and expense of individual prosecution of the
complex and extensive litigation necessitated by Defendant’s conduct. It would
be virtually impossible for members of the Classes individually to redress
effectively the wrongs done to them. Bven if the members of the Class could
afford such individual litigation, the court system could not. Individualized
litigation presents a potential for inconsistent or contradictory judgments.
Individualized litigation increases the delay and expense to all parties, and to
the coutt system, presented by the complex legal and factual issues of the case.
By contrast, the class action device presents far fewer management difficulties,
and provides the benefits of single adjudication, an economy of scale, and
comprehensive supervision by a single cowt. Upon information and belief,

-8-

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




LAW GROUB APC

o

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

20

22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Case 1:21-cv-00711-DAD-SAB Document 1-1 Filed 04/30/21 Page 10 of 32

47.

48,

49.

50,

51.

52.

members of the Classes can be readily identified and notified based on, inter
alia, Defendant’s own records, product serial numbers, submitted warranty
activation ocards, wattanty claims, registration records, and database of
complaints.
Defendant has acted, and continues to act, on grounds generally applicable to
the Class, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief and corresponding
declaratory relief with respect to the Class as a whole.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
VIOLATION OF CAL. CIV. CODE §§ 1790, ET SEQ.

CALIFORNIA’S SONG-BEVERLY CONSUMER WARRANTY ACT
Plaintiff incorporates all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as though
fully stated in this cause of action.
The Product and Class products are “consumer goods” as defined by California
Civil Code § 1791(a).
Plaintiff and Class members are “buyers” as defined by California Civil Code §
1791(b).
“Byery manufacturer, distributor, or retailer making express warranties with
respect to consumer goods shall fully set forth those warranties in simple and
readily understood languagel.]” California Civil Code § 1793.1(@)(1).
“If the manufacturer, distributor, or retailer provides a warranty or product
registration card or form, or an electronic online warranty or product registration
form, to be completed and returned by the consuter, the card or form shall
contain statements, each displayed in a clear and conspicuous manner, that do all
of the following:

a. Informs the consumer that the card or form is for product registration,

b. Informs the consumer that failure to complete and return the card or form

does not diminish his or her warranty rights.” Caljfornia Civil Code §
1793.1(a)(1)(A)-(B). |

-9
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53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

“No watranty o produet registration card or form, or an electronic online
warranty or product registration form, may be labeled as a warranty registtation
or a wartanty confirmation.” California Civil Code § 1793.1(b).

By providing a warranty registration cards and online registration form, with
Plaintiff’s Product and Class members’ products which do not inform Plaintiff
and Class members that the card is for product registration and that warranty
rights will not be diminished if the card is not completed, Defendant is in
violation of its affirmative obligations under the SBA.

By requiring the product warranties be registered within 30 days of purchase,
Defendant is in violation of SBA.

Defendant values its ability to include warranty registration forms with its
product packing, and as a result of being permitted to include the forms without
the statutorily prescribed language, Defendant received, and continges to
recetve, a benefit which Plaintiff and Class members did not realize they paid
for.

Had Plaintiff and Class members been aware of these terms, they would not have
paid the price they did. |

Plaintiff and Class members would have paid less for their products had they
been aware of these terms, The premium paid is a benefit received by Defendant
and should be returned to Plaintiff.

Plaintiff and Class members have been damaged by not receiving the warranty
they were promised, or alternatively, even if warranties do exist, by rightfully
believing they do not have warranty rights.

Defendant benefits, at Plaintiff’s and Class members’ expense, from this tactic as
its costs for repaiting products under warranty, as well as administering product
warranties, are reduced.

Class members who did provide their personal information have been damaged
by being forced to relinquish their personal information based on Defendant’s

-10-
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64.

65.

66.

67.

« 1168,

63.

69.

70.

statutorily mandated omissions,

62. Plaintiff and Class members are sntitled to damages, including reimbursement of

the purchase price of the Class products, under California Civil Code §1794(a)
and §1794(b).
In addition to the other amounts recovered, Plaintiffs and Class membets are
entitled to a civil penalty of two-times the amount of actual damages, pursuant to
California Civil Code §1794(c).
Plaintiff and class members are futther entitled 1o recover as part of the judgment
a sum equal to the aggregate amount of costs and litigation related expenses,
including but not limited to attorney’s fees, reasonably incurted in connéction
with the commencement and prosecution of this action under California Civil
Code §1794(d).
SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
VIOLATION OF CAL, CIV, CODE §§ 1750, ET SEQ.
CALIFORNIA’S CONSUMER LEGAL REMEDIES ACT
Plaintiff incorporates all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as though
fully stated in this cause of action.
Plaintiff and Class members are “consumers” within the meaning of California
Civil Code §1761(d).
The sale of Plaintiff’s and Class members’ produets are “transactions” within the
meaning of California Civil Code §1761(e).
PlaintifPs and Class members’ products are “goods” within the meaning of
California Civil Code §1761(a).
The CLRA prohibits “representing that goods or setvices have sponsorship,
approval, characteristics, ingredients, uses, benefits, or quantities that they do not
have.” California Civil Code §1770(a)(5).
The CLRA prohibits “representing that goods or services are of a particular
standard, quality, or grade, or that goods are of a particular style or model, if

F‘l‘
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71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

79.
80.

they are of another.” California Civil Code §1770(a)(7).

The CLRA prohibits “advertising goods or services with intent not to sell them
as advertised.” California Civil Code §1770(a)(9).

The CLRA prohibits “representing that a transaction confers or involves rights,
remedies, or obligations that it does not have or involve, or that are prohibited by
law.” California Civil Code §1770(a)(14).

The CLRA prohibits “representing that the consumer will receive a rebate,
discount or other economic benefit, if earning the benefit is contingent on an
event to occur after the transaction.” California Civil Code §1770(2)(17).
Defendant promised, advertised and represented at time of sale that Plaintiff and
Class members would receive a warranty with no strings attached.

Howevet, Defendant failed to disclose information which was concealed inside
packaging; namely that the warranty must be “registered” within 30 days of
purchase in ordet to receive its benefits.

Defendant’s concealment of material warranty terms and omission of required
language was done deliberately and intentionally with the purpose of deceiving
Plaintiff and Class members and inducing them into purchasing the Class
products, ot alternately providing their persdnal information.

Defendant knows, or should have known, that were it to conspicuously disclose
the material warranty terms it hides inside the product packing (even if such
terms are not valid), Plaintiff and Class members would not purchase the Class
products or would not pay a premium for them.

Thus, Defendant’s conduct violates California Civil Code § 1770(a)(5),
1770(a)(7), 1770(2)(9); 1770(a)(14), and 1770(a)(17).

Plaintiff relied on Defendant’s representations.

As a result of Défendant’s false representations and deceitful conduct regarding
its warranties, Plaintiff and Class members were injured because they: (a) would
not have purchased the Class products if the true facts were known concetning

-2 -
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81.

82.

83.

the Defendant’s false and misleading warranty claims at time of purchase, or

Plaintiff and Class members would have paid substantially less; (b) paid a
premium price for the Class Products as a result of Defendant’s false warranties
and misrepresentations; (c) purchased products that did not have the sponsorship,
characteristics, and qualities promised by Defendant; and (d) had to take
additional steps and actions in order to receive the benefit they should have
already entitled to.

Under California Civil Code § 1780(a) and (b), Plaintiff, individually and on
behalf of the Class, seeks an injunction requiting Defendant to cease and desist
the illegal conduct alleged in this Complaint. Speciﬁpally, Plaintiff and Class
members are entitled to a permanent injunction that compels Defendant to
immediately: (1) cease and desist from the continued sale of the products that
contain the same or similar misrepresentations as the Class products; (2) initiate
a cotrective advertising campaign to notify Class members who are victims of
the above-described illegal conduct about the true nature the Class products and
associated warranty; and (3) initiate a full recall of the Class products with an

offer to refund the purchase price, plus reimbursement of interest.

Pursuant to § 1782(a) of the CLRA, on or about February 19, 2021, Plaintiff’s

counsel notified Defendant in writing via certified mail return receipt requested
of the particular violations of § 1770 of the CLRA and demanded that it rectify
the problems associated with the actions detailed above and give notice to all
affected consumers of Defendant’s intent to act.

If Defendant fails to respond to Plaintiff’s letter, fails to agree to rectify the

~ problems associated with the actions detailed above, or fails to give notice to all

affected consumers within 30 days of the date of written notice, Plaintiff reserves
the right to amend the Complaint to pursue claims for actual, punitive, and
statutory damages, as appropriate against Defendant. As to this cause of action,
at this time, Plaintiff seeks only injunctive relief under the CLRA.

213 -
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84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

91.

Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a sworn declaration from Plaintiff pursuant to
California Civil Code § 1780(d).
THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
VIOLATION OF CAL. BUS. & PROF. CODE §§ 17200, ET SEQ.
CALIFORNIA’S UNFAIR COMPETITION LAW
Plaintiff incorporates all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as though
fully stated in this cause of action.
The UCL defines “unfair business competition” to include any “unlawful, unfair
or fraudulent” act or practice, as well as any “unfair, deceptive, untrue or
misleading” advertising. Caljfornia Business and Professions Code § 17200,
The UCL imposes strict liability. Plaintiff need not prove that Defendant
intentionally or negligently engaged in unlawful, unfait, or fraudulent business
practices — but only that such practices occurred.
“Unfair” Prong
A business act or practice is “unfair” undet the UCL if it offends an established
public policy or is immoral, unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous or substantially
injurious to consumers, and that unfairness is determined by weighing the
reasons, justifications and motives of the practice against the gravity of the harm
to the alleged victims:
Defendant’s actions constitute “unfair” business practices because, as alleged
above, Defendant engaged in a misleading and deceptive practice of
intentionally omitting statutorily mandated warranty disclosures to consumers
and making warranty contingent on registration within 30 days of purchase.
This is done to trick consumers into believing they don’t have warranty rights in
an effort to discourage watranty claim submisgions, thus saving Defendant
money and increasing its profit margin. Or worse, to actually eliminate the
warranty promised at time of purchase.
Defendant tricks consumets into providing their personal information in order to

- 14 -
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92,

93.

94,

95.

96.

97.

98.

99.

obtain a warranty when the consumers are not required to share their personal
information to obtain the benefit of an express warranty.
Defendant’s acts and practices offend an established public policy of
transparency in warranty rights, and engage in immoral, unethical, oppressive,
and unscrupulous activities that are substantially injurious to consumers.
The harm to Plaintiff and Class members grossly outweighs the utility of
Defendant’s practices as there is no utility to Defendant’s practices.

“Fraudulent” Prong
A business act or practice is “fraudulent” under the UCL if it is likely to deceive
membets of the consuming public.
Defendant’s acts and practices alleged above constitute fraudulent business acts
or practices as they deceived Plaintiff and are highly likely to deceive members
of the consuming public,
By not providing the required statutory language and making warranty rights
contingent on registration within 30 days of purchase, Plaintiff and Class
members can only draw one conclusion: registration is required in order to
receive and access their warranty, contrary to the representations made at time of
sale that the Product was accompanied with an express warranty.

“Unlawful” Prong

A business act or practice is “unlawful” under the UCL if it violates any other
law or regulation,
Defendant’s acts and practices alleged above constitute unlawful business acts or
practices as they have violated the plain language of the SBA as described in
Plaintiff’s First Cause of Action above.
As detailed in Plaintiff’s Second Cause of Action above, Defendant’s acts and

practices surrounding the sale also violate several provisions of the CLRA.

100. The violation of any law constitutes an “unlawful” business practice under the

UCL.

- 15~
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101. These acts and practices alleged were intended to or did result in violations of
the SBA and the CLRA.

102. Defendant’s practices, as set forth above, have misled Plaintiff, the Class
members, and the public in the past and will continue to mislead in the future,
Consequently, Defendant’s practices constitute an unlawful, fraudulent, and
unfair business practice within the meaning of the UCL.

103. Pursuant to the UCL, Plaintiff is entitled to preliminary and permanent
injunctive relief and order Defendant to cease this unfair competition, as well as
disgorgement and restitution to Plaintiff and the Class of all Defendant’s
revenues associated with its unfair competition, or such portion of those
revenues as the Court may find equitable,

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Plaintiff prays that judgment be entered against Defendant as follows:

1, That this action be certified as a class action;

2. That Plaintiff be appointed as the representative of the Classes;

3. That Plaintiff's attorneys be appointed Class Counsel;

4. For an order declaring Defendant’s conduct to be unlawful;

5. For an order compelling Defendant to make restitution to Plaintiff and
Class members under the SBA in an amount equal to the total amounts
paid and payable for the Class products;

6. For actual damages;

7. For a civil penalty of two-times actual damages;

8. For punitive damages;

9, For pre and post -judgment interest at the legal rate;

10.For injunctive and other equitable relief as necessary to protect the interests
of Plaintiff and other Class membets, and an order prohibiting Defendant
from engaging in the unlawful, unfair, deceptive and fraudulent acts
described above;

<16~
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11.For an order that Defendant engage in a corrective advertising campaign;

12.For an order of restitition and disgorgement of all profits and unjust
enrichment that Defendant obtained from Plaintiff and the Class members
as a result of its unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent business practices;

13,For attorney’s fees, costs of suit, and out of pocket expenses; and

14.For such other and further relief that the Comt deems proper,

TRIAL BY JURY
104. Pursuant to the Seventh Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of
“ America, Plaintiff is entitled to, and demands a trial by jury.

Dated: February 19, 2021 Respectfully submitted,

KAZEROUNI LAW GROUP, APC

ABBAS KAZEROUNIAN, ESQ.
AK@KAZLG,.COM

Jason A. Ibey, Esq. (SBN: 284607)
Kazerouni Law Group, APC

321 N Mall Drive, Sunite R108

St. George, Utah 84790

Telephone (800) 400-6808
Facsimile (800) 520-5523

Email: jason@kazlg.com

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF

Yr
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




Case 1:21-cv-00711-DAD-SAB Document 1-1 Filed 04/30/21 Page 19 of 32

Exhibit A




K AZEROUNI
LAW GROUP, APC

3

(¥ T~ SN N« T e L Y

Case 1:21-cv-00711-DAD-SAB Document 1-1 Filed 04/30/21 Page 20 of 32

DECLARATION OF CHAD CASEY
I, CHAD CASEY, DECLARE:
1. On or about December 15, 2020, I purchased a Medcursor Neck Shoulder
Massager with Heat, Electric Shiatsu Back Massage Device (the “Product”).

2. At the time of my payment and review of the Product, I was in Fresno County,
where I also reside.
3. Also, it is my understanding that Defendant, Medeursor, Inc., does business in

the County of Fresno, State of California

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of California and the United
States of America that the foregoing is true and correct, and that this declaration was

executed on 02/17/2021

Chad Casey

DECLARATION PURSUANT TO CAL. CIV. CODE §1780(D)




Case 1:21-cv-00711-DAD-SAB Document 1-1 Filed 04/30/21 Page 21 of 32

\ EXHIBIT B




Case 1:21-cv-00711-DAD-SAB Document 1-1 Filed 04/30/21 Page 22 of 32

SUM-100
o fgmﬂ ﬁl gﬁ; 1al) (5010 FATA 630 DE LA GORTE)
NOTICE TO DEFENDANT: E-FILED {
(AVISO AL DEMANDADO): 212212021 :
MEDCURSOR, INC. Superior Gourt of California
T County of Fresno
By: A. Ramos, Deputy
YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF:

(LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE):

CHAD CASEY, Individually

and On Behalf of All Others Similarly Sitnated

below. : ;
Yoii have 30 CALENDAR DAYS

(wwwicourtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), o

continuaclén.

cualguler recuperaclén da $10,000
pagar &l gravamien dé la corte ante

NOTICEI You have been sued. The court may declde against you withaut your belng heard unless you respond within 30 days. Read the Information

sefyed on the plaintiff. A letter'or phone call will not protect you, Your wrltten response must be'in proper legal farm if you want the court to hear your
case, Thete may be 2 court form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and mare information at thé Califorpia Courts
Online Self-Help Center (www.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), your county law llorary, or the courthouse-nearest you, If you cannot pay the filing fee, dsk
the caurt clerk for a fee walver form. If you do not fite your rgsponse on lime, you may lose the case by default, and your wages, menay, and properly
may be taken withou further warning from the court. :

There are other legal requirements. You may want to call an attorney right away. If you do not know an attornay, you may want to cafl an attorney
referral service, If you cannot afford an attorney, you may ba aligible for free legal servides from a nonprofit legal services program. You can locate
these. nonprafit groups at the Galifomia Legal Sarvices Web slte (www.Jawhelpealifornia.org), the California Courts Onlina Seli-Help.Centar

cosls on any selllement or arbilralion award of $10,000 or more In a clvil case. Thé court's llen must be pald before the court will dismiss the case.
JAVISOI Lo han demandado. S!no responde denlro de 30 dias, la corfe puede decidir en su conira sin escuchar su version. Lea la Informaclién a

Tiene 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIO despugs de que le enlreguen esta citacion y papeles Jogales para presentar una respuesta por éscrito en esla
coré y hacer que se entregue una copia al deinandante. Una carla.o una llamada-telefonica no lo protegen. Su respuesta por ascrito tlene que eslar
an formialo legal correcto’s! dasea que procesen st aso en fa corls, Es pibsible que haya un formulario que ustad plieda usar para si respuesta.
Puéde encontrar eslos formularlos de la corte y més informecion en el Cenfro de Ayudla de Jas Cortes de Calffornia (www.sucorle.ca.gov), en fa
bibliotaca de leyes de su condado o en la corle qus lé quede mas cefea, Sino puade pagar la cuola de presentaclén, pida al secralario de Ja corle .
que le dé un formulario de exencién de pago de cuolas. S/ no presenta su réspuesta a ilempo, pugde perder el caso por incumplimienio y la corte le
podré quitar su sueldo, dinero y blenes sin més adveriencia. )

Hay olros requisitos legales. Es recomendable que llame & un ahogado Inmediatameénte. S no conace a un abogado, puede Hlamar a un serviclo de '
remision a abogados. S/ no puede pagar a un abogado, es pasible guie cumpla con fos requlsios pafa oblener-sérvicios fagalés Gratuitos dé un
programa da serviclos legales sin fines de luero. Pueds encontrar aslos grupos sin finés de lucrg en el silio web de California Legel Services,

(www lawhelpealifornia.org), en el Centro de Aytda de las Cortes de Callfornia, (www.Stcatie.ca,gov) o poniéndose en contacts con la cotta o el
colagho-de abogados locales. AVISO: Por ley, la corle liene derecho a reclamar las cuolas i los coslgs exéhlos por imporier Un gravameh sdbré

after this summons and legal papers are served on you to file a wrillen response, at this court and have a copy

by conlacting your local court or counly bar assoclation. NOTE: The court has a stalutory lien for waived fees and

& més do valor reciblda medliante un acuerdo o una concesién-de arbltrafe en un caso de detecho olvil, Tlene que
s de que la corle _pUeda desechar ol caso,

The name and address of the 6o

(El'nombre y direccion de la.corte es):

B.F. Sisk Courthouse
1130 O Street, Fresno, CA
The name, address, and telephol

CASE NUMBER:

urt Is: Sup. Ct. of CA, Coun_ty‘ of Fresno (Nomero dof Caso): 2.7 GECGOQ507

93721-2220
ne number of plaintiff's attorney, or plaintiff without an attorney, Is: i

(El nombre, la direccion y el numere de téléfono del abogado del demandante; o del demandante que no tlene ahogado, es): !
Abbas Kazerounian, Kazerouni Law Group, APC, 245 Fischer Ave, Suite D1, Costa Mesa, CA,; 92626, (800) 400-6808 ;
Adib Assassi, Black Oak Law Firm, 1100 W, Town and Country Rd., Ste. 1250, Orange, CA 92868, (800) 500-0301

oty 212212021

Clerk, by , Depuly
(Secretario) A. Ramos . {Adjunto)

(For proof of service of this summops, use Proof of Service of Summons {form POS-010).)

(Para prueba de:enfrega de &sta

fSEAL]

citation use el formulario Proof of Service of Summons, (POS:01 0).
NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served

1, [ as an individual defendant.

2.[ ) asthe persan sued under the fictitious name of (spécify): g

3, 1 on behalf of (specify):

under: (] CCP 446.10 (corporation) [] ©CP 416,80 (minor) :
1 CCP 416.20 (defunct corporation) [C] CCP 416.70 (consetvatee) '
[] CCP 416.40 {assaclation or parinership) [__] GCP 416,90 (authorized person)

(] other (specify):
4. [T by personal delivery on (date):
. - Pags 4 of1

Foim Adépled for Mandalory Uso
Judleial Councll of Californla
SUM-100. {Rev..July 1, 2009)

SUMMONS Gode of Givil Procadure §§ 412.20;465
winv.courtinfo.ca.gov
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POS-010
ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY: FOR COURT USEONLY
Abbas Kazerounian, Esq. (SBN 249203)
Kazerouni Law Group, APC

245 Fischer Ave. E-FILED
Suite D1 _
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 4/1/2021 8:00 AM

Superior Court of California
County of Fresno
By: J. Nelson, Deputy

TELEPHONE NO.: (800) 400-6808 FAX NO.: (800} 525-0552
ATTORNEY FOR: Chad Casey

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF FRESNO
STREET ADDRESS: 1130 O st.

MAILING ADDRESS:
CITY AND ZIP CODE: Fresno, 93724
BRANCH NAME: BF SISK Courthouse

PLAINTIFF: Chad Casey CASE NUMBER:
DEFENDANT: Medcursor, Inc, 21CECG00507
Ref. No. or File No.:
PROOF OF SERVICE OF SUMMONS Casey v. Medcursor, Inc.

(Separate proof of service is required for each party served.)
Atthe time of service | was at Ieast 18 years of age and not a parly to this action.
2. |served copies of:
a. summons
complaint
Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) package
Civit Case Cover Sheet (served in complex cases only)
cross-complaint
other (specify documents):
Notice of Assignment CMC

. Party served (specffy name of parly as shown on documents served):
Medcursor, Inc

Person (other than the party in item 3a) served on behalf of an entity or as an authorized agent (and not a person

under item 5b on whom substituted service was made)
Jianbo Zeng / President/ Authorized

-

REERER

w
©

&

4.  Address where the party was served:
Postal Annex, 6130 W, Flamingo Road, Suite 1818, Las Vegas, NV 89103

5. |served the party (check proper box)

a. [__] bypersonalservice. | personally delivered the documents listed in item 2 to the party or person authorized to
receive service of process for the party (1) on (date): {2) at (time):

b. [X] by substituted service. On (date):3/22/2021 ' at (time):12:53 pm |left the documents listed in item 2 with
or in the presence of {name and title or relationship to person indicated in item 3):
Sean Newmark Person in Charge
(&) [:] {business) a person at least 18 years of age apparently in charge at the office or usual place of

business of the person to be served, | informed him or her of the general nature of the papers.

@ [ (home) a competent member of the household (at least 18 years of age) at the dwelling house or
usual place of abode of the party. |informed him or her of the general nature of the papars.

(3) [X] (physical address unknown) a person at least 18 years of age apparently in charge atthe usual
malling address of the person {o be served, other than a United States Postal Service post office box.
| informed him or her of the general nature of the papers.

4 D(:_] | thereafter mailed (by first-class, postage prepaid) copies of the documents 1o the person to be
served at the place where coples were left (Code Civ. Proc., 415.20). | malled the documents on
(date): from (city): or[ X]
a declaration of malling is attached,

() ] tattached a declaration of diligence stating actions taken first to attempt personal senice.

Pagatof2

POS D18 (o Secutry 13007 PROOF OF SERVICE OF SUMMONS Job Number SN0O-2021001333
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PLAINTIFF: Chad Casey CASE NUMBER:
DEFENDANT: Medcursor, Inc. 21CECE00507
c¢. [_] bymail and acknowledgment of receipt of service, | mailed ihe documents listed in Item 2 to the party, to the

address shown in item 4, by first-class mail, postage prepaid,
(1) on (date): (2) from (city):

(3) [ with two copies of the Notice and Acknowledgement of Receipt and a postage-paid retun envelope
addressed to me, (Aftach completed Notice and Acknowledgement of Receipt.) (Code Civ. Proc.,
415.30.)

(4) [] to an address outside California with return receipt requested. (Code Civ. Proc., 415.40.)
by other means (specify means of service and authorizing code section):

Additional page describing service is attached.

8. The "Notice to the Person Served” (on the summons) was completed as follows:

d [

3
a []
b. [ ]
e []
d.

as an individual defendant.

as the person sued under the fictitious name of(specify):
as occupant,

On behalf of(specify): Medcursor, Inc

under the following Code of Civil Procedure section:

[X]] 416.10 (comoration) [] 415.95 (business organization, form unknown)
[] 416.20 (defunct corporation) ] 416.80 (minor)
[_—__] 416.30 (joint stock company/association) [ | 416.70 (ward or conservatee)
[1 416.40 (assactation or partnership) [] 416.90 (authorized person)
(] 416.50 (public entity) [] 415.46 (occupant)
(7] other;

7. Person who served papers
a. NameMichelle Ely
Firm:Sano Attorney Service

a0

Address:P.0. Box 1568, Riverside, CA 92502
Telephone number; (908) 425-2248

The fee for the service was: $125.25

lam:

o) not a registered California process server,
2) E:} exempt from registration under Business and Profassions Code section 22350(b).
(3 [_] aregistered Califomia process server:

@) [_] owner [ | employee [} independent contractor.
(i) Registration No.:
(iiiy County:

8. [X7 1declare under penally of perjury under the laws of the State of Californla that the foregoing is true and correct.

or
9. [_] 1am a California sherlff or marshal and I cerlify that the foregoing is true and correct.

Date: "% )9—5 IQ"\

NAME OF PERSON WHO SERVED PAPERBISHERIFF OR MARSHAL) (SIGNATURE) V
Page 2012
gt s

POL-010 Rev. Jurwry 1, 2007]

PROOF OF SERVICE OF SUMMONS Job Number SN0-2021001333
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ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY: FOR COURT USE ONLY
Abbas Kazerounian, Esqg. (SBN 249203)
Kazerouni Law Group, APC

245 Fischer Ave.

Suite D1
Costa Mesa, CA 92626
TELEPHONE NO.: (800) 400-6808 FAX NO.: {800) 525-0552

ATTORNEY FOR: Chad Casey

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF FRESNO
STREET ADDRESS: 1130 O st.

MAILING ADDRESS:
CITY AND ZIP CODE: Fresno, 93724

BRANCH NAME: BF SISK Courthouse

PLAINTIFF: Chad Casey CASE NUMBER:
DEFENDANT: Medcursor, Inc. 21CECG00507

Ref. No. or File No.:
DECLARATION OF MA"JNG Casey v. Medcursor, Inc.

5.

I, Monique Fisher, am at least 18 years of age and not a parly to this action.
Documents mailed:

Summons; Complaint; Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) package; Civil Case Sheet; Notice of
Assignment CMC

A true copy of the documents were sealed in an envelope and placed in the United States mail with First Class postage
prepaid as follows:

Date: 3/23/2021
Location: Redlands, CA
Addressed: Jianbo Zeng / President/ Authorized, Postal Annex, 6130 W. Flamingo Road,

Suite 1818, Las Vegas, NV 89103

Person performing mailing:

Name: Monique Fisher

Firm: Sano Attorney Service

Address: P.0. Box 1568, Riverside, CA 92502
Telephone Number: (909) 425-2248

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

Date: 5’/93 /9“

Monique Fisher } (// % /éﬁ/?

{PRINTED NAME) SIGNATURE)

Page 1 of1

DECLARATION OF MAILING Job Number SNO-2021001333
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STEINBRECHER & SPAN LLP
GEOFFREY T. STOVER (SB#211715)
ANDREW HUANG (SB#304402)

445 S. Figueroa St., Suite 2350

Los Angeles, CA 90071

T: (213) 891-1400

F: (213) 891-1470

Attorneys for Defendant
MEDCURSOR, INC.

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF FRESNO

CHAD CASEY, Individually and On CASE NO. 21CECG00507
Behalf of All Others Similarly Situated,
[Hon. D. Tyler Tharpe]
Plaintiff,
ANSWER TO COMPLAINT
Vs.
Dept. 501
MEDCURSOR, INC.,

Defendant.

ANSWER TO COMPLAINT
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Defendant Medcursor, Inc. (“Medcursor”) hereby answers the unverified Complaint of
Plaintiff Chad Casey (“Plaintiff”) as follows:
GENERAL DENIAL

Pursuant to Section 431.30(d) of the California Code of Civil Procedure, Medcursor
generally denies each allegation of the Complaint, and each cause of action set forth therein.
Medcursor furthergenerally denies that Plaintiff is entitled to the relief requested in his
Complaint, or that Plaintiff has been or will be damaged because of any act or omission on the

part of Medcursor.

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

Medcursor alleges the following affirmative defenses to the Complaint and each cause of

action therein:

FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Failure to State a Cause of Action)
For each cause of action set forth in the Complaint, Plaintiff fails to state facts sufficient to

constitute a cause of action upon which relief can be granted.

SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Uncertainty)
Each cause of action in the Complaint is barred, in whole or in part, to the extent that the

material allegations therein are uncertain, ambiguous, and/or unintelligible.

THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Lack of Standing)
Plaintiff lacks standing to bring each cause of action set forth in the Complaint.

FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(No Damage)
Plaintiff has failed to allege that Medcursor’s alleged acts or omissions caused him

actionable damage or economic loss.

2
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FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Failure to Mitigate Damages)
Each cause of action in the Complaint is barred, in whole or in part, on the ground that
Plaintiff failed to take reasonable steps to minimize or prevent the damage Plaintiff claims to have

suffered.

SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Unjust Enrichment)
Each cause of action in the Complaint is barred, in whole or in part, because the relief
Plaintiff seeks would, if granted, unjustly enrich Plaintiff.

SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Speculative Damages)
Each cause of action in the Complaint is barred, in whole or in part, because Plaintiff’s
alleged damages are speculative.

EIGHTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Adequate Remedy at Law)
Plaintiff’s claim for injunctive relief and equitable relief is barred because, to the extent
that Plaintiff is entitled to any relief by way of his Complaint, Plaintiff has an adequate and

complete remedy at law.

NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Unclean Hands)
Each cause of action in the Complaint is barred, in whole or in part, by the doctrine of

unclean hands.

TENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(No Causation)
Each cause of action in the Complaint is barred, in whole or in part, because the damages

Plaintiff alleges to have suffered were not the result of any act or omission by Medcursor.

3
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ELEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Waiver)

Each cause of action in the Complaint is barred, in whole or in part, by the doctrine of

waiver.

TWELFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Estoppel)
Each cause of action in the Complaint is barred, in whole or in part, by the doctrine of

estoppel.
THIRTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Good Faith)
At all relevant times, Medcursor complied in good faith with all applicable laws and
reasonable interpretations of the same, and as to any other allegations as may be alleged by

Plaintiff in this action.

FOURTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Assumption of Risk)
Each cause of action in the Complaint is barred, in whole or in part, because Plaintiff

assumed the risk of detriment, if any.

FIFTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Justification/Privilege)

Each cause of action in the Complaint is barred, in whole or in part, because Medcursor’s

conduct was justified and/or privileged and undertaken pursuant to the terms of applicable laws
and regulations.

SIXTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Claims Not Representative of Class)

Plaintiff’s claims are not representative of the claims of the members of the putative class,

and therefore this action is not properly maintained as a class action.

4
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SEVENTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(No Common Questions of Law and Fact)
The allegations of the Complaint are such that individuaﬁzed questions of law and fact
predominate over common questions, and proofs peculiar to the Plaintiff differ from the claims of
the members of the putative class, and therefore this action is not properly maintained as a class

action.

EIGHTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(No Punitive Damages)
Plaintiff’s Complaint fails to state facts sufficient to assert his claim for punitive damages.

NINETEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Reservation of Further Defenses)
Medcursor reserves the right to plead and prove further affirmative defenses as they may
become known, as it presently lacks sufficient knowledge or information upon which to form a

belief as to such additional, as yet unknown, affirmative defenses.

WHEREFORE, Medcursor prays for relief as follows:

1. That the Complaint be dismissed with prejudice;

2. That Plaintiff take nothing by way of the Complaint and that judgment be entered
against Plaintiff and in favor of Medcursor on each cause of action alleged in the Complaint;

3. That Medcursor be awarded its costs in defending this action; and

4. That Medcursor be granted such other and further relief as the Court may deem

just and propet.

Dated: April 29, 2021 STEINBRECHER & SPAN LLP
GEOFFREY T. STOVER
ANDREW HUAI\%G
U
By: XLy [
’ Ggbffrgy T. Stover g
Attorneys for'Defendant Medcursor, Inc.

oot
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PROOQOF OF SERVICE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) ss:
CITY AND COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )

I am employed in the City and County of Los Angeles, State of California. Iam
over the age of 18 and not a party to the within action. My business address is Steinbrecher &
Span LLP, 445 South Figueroa Street, Suite 2350, Los Angeles, California 90071.

On April 29, 2021, I served the foregoing document(s) described as:

ANSWER TO COMPLAINT

on the interested parties, by placing a true copy thereof in a sealed envelope(s) addressed as
follows:

Abbas Kazerounian, Esq. Adib Assassi, Esq.

Kazerouni Law Group, APC Black Oak Law Firm

245 Fischer Ave., Unit D1 1100 W. Town and Country Rd., Suite 1250
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 Orange, CA 92868

T: (800) 400-6808 T: (800) 500-0301

F: (800) 520-5523 F: (800) 500-0301

Attorneys for Plaintiff Attorneys for Plaintiff

[ ] VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL:
VIA : By delivering such documents to an overnight mail service or an
authorized courier in an envelope or package designated by the express service
courier addressed to the person(s) on whom it is to be served.

X VIA U.S. MAIL:

I am readily familiar with the firm's practice of collection and processing of
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice such envelope(s) would be
deposited with the U.S. postal service on April 29, 2021 with postage thereon -
fully prepaid, at Los Angeles, California.

VIA PERSONAL DELIVERY:
I personally delivered such envelope(s) by hand to the offices of the addressee
pursuant to CCP § 1011.

VIA FACSIMILE:
By transmitting via facsimile the document(s) listed above to the fax number(s)
set forth below on this date before 5:00 p.m.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the state of California that the
above is true and correct and was executed on April 29, 2021 at Los Angeles, California.

Lisa M. Atwood  \
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